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MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITICGN

as at 31 March 2025

ASSETS

Cash and gold

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam
(“SBV")

Balances with and foans to other credit
institutions [(“Cla"})

Balances with other Cls

Derivatives and other financial assets
Loans to customers

Loans to cusiomers

Provisions for boans o customers
Investment securities

Availabla-for-sale sacuntias
Held-to-maturity 2ecurities

Provislons for Investment sacuritias
Capital contributions, long-term investmentsa
Other long-term invastmeants

Pravisions for loss on capital contributions and
long-term investments

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assels
Cost
Accumidated deprecialion

Intangible fixed assals
Cosf
Accwmdaled amortizaion

Cher assets
Receivables
Accrued interest and fee receivables

Hher asseis
Prendslons for ather assats

TOTAL ASSETS

BO2aTCTO-HN

31 December

31 March 2025 2024

Mofas WD million VND miflton
5 382,383 296,645
6 3,013,644 3,507,305
T 17,916,561 15,073,929
17 916,561 15,073,820

18 832 -
76,816,268 59,978,404

B 78,041,365 71,174,720
{1,225.097) {1.196.318)

10 21,464,073 18,718,304
5,101,284 4,550,275

16 515,778 14,325 518

{152.888) {157.489)

11 371,244 71,244
18,600 718,600

(348 356) (348, 358)

857,030 922,110

12 200,205 208,567
391,940 397,059

{7197,735) {188,452)

13 656,825 713,543
796,397 849 448

(139,672) {135 805)

14 10,060,879 8,630,775
8.344 438 8,152,852

626,646 499,530

2,769,185 2817783

(1.679.440) {1,679,440)

130,882,814 118,498,718
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MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOUDATED STATEMERNT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {continued)

asat 31 March 2025

BO2aTCTD-HN

3T Dacambar
31 March 2025 2024
Notes VINLY muitlion VD mitlion
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS® EQUITY
Amount due to Govemment and the SBY 15 B5&, 959 -
Deposits and borrowings from other Cls 16 14,240,935 10,036,450
Deposits from other Cls 14,740,935 10,035,450
Borrowings from ather Cls 200,000
Deposits from customers 17 102,527,917 96,117,186
Derivatives and other financial liabilities 18 - 86,313
Borrowed and entrusted funds 18 10,028 11,160
Valuable papers issued 20 4,760,393 4,304,643
Other liabilities 21 1,544,069 1,850,128
Interest and fes payables 1,004,775 1,186,011
Other payables and liabilties 448,294 664,117
TOTAL LIABILITIES 124,638,301 112,405,870
OWNERS’ EQUITY
Capital 11,749 988 11,745,588
Charter capital 19,778,848 11,779.848
Share premuium {2786) {216)
Treasury shares (29,644) (20, 644)
Reserves 106,551 106,551
Retained earnings (5,612 826) (5,763.603)
Currant year retained earnings 150,767 (& 128938}
Frevious year relained eamings (5,763,693 (634, 7 58]
TOTAL OWNERS' EQUITY 23 6,243,613 6,092,846
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS" EQUITY 130.882.914 118,498,716
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National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (cantinuad)
as at 31 March 2025

OFF BALAMCE SHEET ITEMS

BO2a/TCTD-HN

31 Decenbar

3 March 2025 2024

Noles VND milfion VND miflion

Loan guaraniegs 28 ba4 28 644
Foreign exchanga commitments 11,466,177 13,317,723
Foreign currancy purchass commimants 1,048 339 1,307,853
Fareign currency sale conmilmants 1,609,988 889,543
Swap commitments 8,807,850 11,030 327
Letters of cradit 220,217 204,014
Dther guaraniess 8,424 DT 5435180
Other commitments 356,817,510 B,BIB 410
Uncollected Iosn inferest and fee receivablas 19,849 715 20,410,771
Wintten-off bad debts 1,624,688 1,601,008
Other assats and documents in custody 59040893 55.128.422

Freparad by: Reviewed by:

Hanai, 25 Aprii 2025

W=, Do Quynh Trang Msz. Bul Thi Khanh Van
Haad of Ganeral accounting Chief Accountant

department




National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the perod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

MNotes
Interast and slmilar income 24
Interast and similar expansas 25
Meat interest income
Fes and commission income
Fes and commission axpanses
et fee and commission income 28
Met gain/ (loss) from trading of
foreign currencies 27
Net gain/ (loss) from trading of
Investment securities 28
Other income
Other expensaes
Met income from other activitios 28
Operating expenses 30
Met operating profit before allowance
and provision expenses
Provision expenses for credit losses 31
Profit before tax
Current income tax expanss
Income tax expense
Profit after tax
Freparad by: Reviewsd by:

BO3aTCTO-HM

Fov tha panod from 07

Quarter{ January fo 31 March
2025 2024 2025 2024
VND milion  VND milton VND millon  VIND million
1,841,152 1422410 1,B41,152 1423410
(1,336,291) (1,201.802} (1.336.251) {1.201.802)
504,861 221,608 504,861 221,608
58,098 26,743 58,008 26,743
{28,838) (20,604} (25.838) (20.604)
29,260 6,138 28,260 6,139
33,477 24,154 33,477 24,154
17,852 68,548 17,852 68,548
89,985 5,229 89,985 5,229
{77,232) {12 BE66) (F7.232) {12 868)
12,753 {7.637) 12,752 {7,637)
(381,914)  (344,797)  {381,914)  (344,787)
216,289 (31,985) 216,288 {31,985}
{64, 896) {9,914) (64,896) {9,914)
151,383 {41,898) 151,393 (41,899)
(628) = (B26)
—foe : (626) :
150,767 (41,899) 150,767 {41,8849)

Ms. Do Quynh Trang

departmeant

Ms. Bui Thi Khanh Van
Hesd of General accounling Chief Accountant

Chief E

Hanoi, 25 April 2025

thve Officer
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

From /0712025

Blda/TCTD-HN

From 01/01/2024

to 31/3/2025 to 314342024

Motas VNE mitfion VIND million
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest and similar income received 1,708,230 1,229,325
Interest and similar expensed pald {1.427.481) {1,605,181)
Mel fee and commission income received 208,584 6,126
Met paymeants forreceipts from frading activities of
fareign currencies and securities 45 829 {10,797
Cither income receved 20,397 23,618
Receipts from recovery of bad debis praviously
written off 35 .
Paymants for operating and salary expenses (273.515) (252 250)
Income tax paid during the period 22 )
Net cash flows from operating activities before
changes In operating assets and liabilities 103.465 (609,166)
Changes in operating assets
(Increase) decrease in balances with and loan to
other Cls - -
{Increasa)/ decrease In invastmeant securities (2,741,268) 2.810,8582
{Increase) decreass In derivatives and other
financial asseis (832} =
{Increase)) decrease In lpans to customers (6,865, 645) {3,031,828)
{Increase)/ decrease in provision for credit losses (40,615) {103, 458)
ther increase) decrease in opersting assets (321,252) 790,267
Changes in operating liabilities
Increasel (decreasa) in bormowings from the
Government and the S8Y 855 958 -
Increasel (decrease) in depaosits and bomowings
fromm other Cls 4 904 485 [2.5905,164)
Incraasal (decreasa) in deposiis from customers B.410,731 3,310,232
Incraasel (dacreasa) in valuable papaers izsued
(except for valuable papars issued for finanding
activitizs) 7.100 (323,085)
Increasa/ (decreasa) in borrawed and entrustad
funds (1,122) (1.450)
Incraasa) (decreasa) in derivatives and other
finanzial liakillias (86,313) 117,028
Other increasel (decraase) in oparating lishilties (214 081} (103,478}
Use of reserves - -
Met cash flows from operating activitios 2,008,601 450,848
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cantinued)
for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

From OTA071/2025

EQ4a/TCTD-HN

From 01A01/2024

to 31/32025 fo 31/3:2024
MNotes VN miflion VD mullicn
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Paymenis for purchases of fived asseis (21,808) (2,318)
Proceeds from disposals of fived assets 71,249 208
Payments for disposals of fixed assets (72.882) (858)
Cividends and profits recatvad from long-term
investmeants and capital contributions =
Met cash flows from investing activities (23,542) {10,166)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Incraass in share capital due to capital contribution
and/ or share issuance - -
Procseds from the issuance of lang-term valuable
papers eligible for inclusion in own capital and
ather long-term borrowings 448 850 -
Met cash flows from financing activities 448,650 -
Met cash flows during the period 2,434,709 440 682
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period 32 18,877,879 10,996,473
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period 32 21,312,588 11,437,155
Hanal, 25 Apnf 2025
Prepared by: Reviewed by;

M=, Do Quynh Trang
Head of General accounting
dapartmani

Kz, Bul Thi Khanh YWan
Chief Accourtant




Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSRTCTR-HN

MNOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 March 2025 and for the pericd from 01 January 2025 to 371 March 2025

1.1

1.2
1.3

1.4,

GEMNERAL INFORMATION

Mational Citlizen Commercial Jalnt Slock Bank (“the Bank™ is a commercial joinl stock bank
established and registered in the Socialist Republic of Viel Nam.

Eztablizshmeant and Operations

The Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank was renamed from Mam Viet Commercial Joint
Stock Bank on 068 May 2014, Previously, the Bank was known as Song Kien Commercial Joint
Stock Bank, a jeint slock bank established under License No, 00057/NH-GP dated 18 Sapiember
1995 issued by the State Bank of Viatnam, replaced by License No. 12/GP-NHNN issusd by the
State Bank of Vietnam on 10 March 2023, and Establishment Licanse No. 1217/GP-UB issued by
the People's Committea of Kien Giang Province on 17 October 1885, The establishment and
operation Licensa Mo, 12/GP-NHNN dated 10 March 2023 was amended in Article 2 regarding
charter capital according to Degision Mo, 2722/Q0-NHNN dated 20 Decembar 2024. The Bank
operates its business under Business Registration Cerdificate No. 1700169765 issusd by the Hanol
Department of Planning and Investment (infially registered undar Business Registration Cariificate
number 050048 dated 02 November 1995 by the Kien Giang Provincial Planning Committes), with
the 22nd amendment to the Business Registration Cedificate dated 02 August 2023,

The principal activiias of the Bank are mobilizing and receiving short, medium and long-term
deposit funds from organizations and individoals; lendirg on shor, madiom and long-term basis
up to the nature and abifity of the Bank's capital resources; conducting settlement and cash
sarvices. and othar banking sarvicas as approved by the SBY, conducting Investments in
subsidiaries, associgtes, joinf-vanturas and athar companies, conducting invesiments in bonds
and dealing in foreign exchange in accordance with applicabla regulations.

Structure of Ownership: Share capllal
The Board of Directors

Mambesrs of the Boad of Directars for the period fram 01 Januvary 2025 10 31 March 2025 and up
to the date of thasa consolidated financlal statements are as follows:

Name. Position

Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Hucng Chairmoman

Ms. Hoang Thu Trang YVice Chairvoman
Mr. Duang The Bang Membar

Ms. Mguyen Thi Hai Hos Member

M= Tnnh Thanh Mai Indepandent Membear
The Board of Supervisory

Mambers of tha Boad of Suparvisary for the penod from 01 January 2025 o 31 March 2025 and
up to the date of these consolidsted financial statements are as follows:

Name Position
Mz, Do Thi Due Minh Head of the Board of Supen/ision
Mr. Mguyen Yan Quang Mamber
Ms., Vu Kim Phuong Mamber

B T i,



Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSalTCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMNTS {continue)
a3 at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 Januany 2025 o 31 March 2025

1.5

1.6

1.7.

1.8,

1.9.

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)
The Board of Wanagemernt

Members of the Boad of Management for the perod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 and
up 1o the date of these consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Mr. Ta Kieu Hung Chief Exacutive Dfficer ("CED")

Ms. Pham Thi Hign Deputy CEO

M=, Vo Thi Thuy Cuong Deputy CED

Mr. Noguyen Viet Hoi Deputy CED in charge of Southarm region
Legal representative

The legal reprasantative of the Bank is Ms, Bui Thi Thanh Huong - Chairsaman,

According fo Authorzation Mo, SH2023QDUGS-CTHEAT dated 21 April 2023, Mz, Bul Thi Thanh
Huong autharzaed Mr. Ta Klew Hung - CEO 1o =ign the consolidated financial statements for the
pariod from 01 January 2025 1o 31 March 2025,

Location and nefwork

The Bank's Head Office s locaied at 25 Le Dai Hanh, Le Dai Hanh Ward, Hai Ba Trung District,
Hanoi.

Az-at 31 March 2025, the Bank has one (1) Head Office, twenty-two (22) branches and ona (1)
subsidiary. The branches are located in the Northern, Central. and Southern regions.

Subsidiary

National Citiren Bank Debt Management and Assst Exploitation Company Limited ("NCEB AMC")
was established under Decision Mo, 2406/0E-MHNN dated 19 December 2006 by the Stalte Bank
af Vietnam. The company operates under Business Registration Certificate Mo, 0304787745,
amended for the 14th time on 19 February 2024, issued by the Hanoi Deparment of Planning and
Inﬂaciéﬁéj with a 100% capital contribution fram National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank
td H]-

Its main business activities include receiving and handling the outstanding debts of Natlonal Citizen
Commercial Joint Stock Bank and the collateral assets related to thesa dabis 1o handle and callect

as quickly as possible.

Total employees

As at 31 March 2025, the Bank and lis subsidianss have 2,148 employees (31 December 2024
2,085 employees)

o, =T



Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

BOSa/TCTO-HM

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continusad)
a= at 31 March 2025 and far the parlad from 01 Janoary 2025 0 31 March 2025

1.

2.2

3.9,

3.2

ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

Accounting period
Tha Bank's annual accounting period starts on 01 January and ends on 31 Decamber.

Accounting currency

The Bank's financial statements are presented in \ietnamesa Dong ("WND"). All figures are
roundad fo the nearest VND millien for the consalidated financial statemeanis.

ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND POLICIES

Statement of compliance

Tha Bank's Beard of Management commits to preparing the consolidated financial statemants in
compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Financial Reporting Regime for Credit
institutions, the regulations of the State Bank of Vietnam, and relevant legal provisions refsted to
the preparation and presentaticn of consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly, the consclidated statement of financial position, consolidated income statameant,
consolidated statement of cash flows, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements are presantad harawith. Tha use of these statements is not intended for users who are
not provided with information about the procedures, principles, and accounting praciices in
Yietnam and is nat intended to prasent the consolidated financial position, consolidated results of
operations, and consolideted cash flows in accordance wilh generally acceptad accounling
principles and practices in ofher countries and teritories ouiside of Vietnam.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank are prepared in accordance with the Accounting
Systam for cradit institutions under Decizion Mo, 47502004/ 0E-NHNN dated 29 April 2004, Circular
Mo, 102014 TT-NHNN dated 20 March 2014, Clreular Mo, 222017 T T-NHMNN dated 29 Daecember
2017, and Circular Na. 272021/ TT-NHMNN dated 31 Decambear 2021 ameanding and suppamanting
Decision Mo, 4782004/ 08-NHNMN; Decision No. 162007/38-NHNN dated 18 April 2007, Circular
Mo, 4892014 TT-MHNN amending and supplementing certain provisions of the Financial Reporting
Fegime for credil [nstitutions issuad with Decision Noo 162007/ 0E-NHNN, and the Accounting
Syateam for credit institutions issuad with Decision No, 4792004/06-NHNN by the Governoes of the
State Bank of Vietnam, and the Vietnamess Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry of
Fingnoe, including:

- Decision No. 14%2001/00-BTC dated 31 December 20071 on the lssuance and Promulgation
of Four Visinamese Accounting Standards (Series Mo 1),

- Dacizgion No. 16572002/00-BTC dated 31 Decembar 2002 on the |ssuance and Promulgation
of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Saries Mo, 2);

- Decizion No. 2342003/00-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the |ssuance and Promulgaton
of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Sares No. 3);

- Decizion No, 122005/00-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the |ssuance and Promulgation of
Six Vietnamasa Accounling Standards (Series No. 4), and

- Dacigion No, 100/2005/Q0-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation
of Four Vietmamesza Accounting Standards (Seres MNo. 9).

e . Y
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MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BDSaTCTO-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSCOLIDATED FINANCGIAL STATEMEMNTS (cantinued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for tha pariod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

i3

3.4,

3.5

ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND POLICIES {confinuad)
Basis of consofidation of financial statements

The consolidated financial stalements comprise the financial statements of the Bank and iz
subsidiaries for the accounting periad from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidatad from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Bank oblains cantrol,
and continue fo be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. In case the Bank divests
il aguity interest in a subsidiary resuffing in [oss of control over tha subsidiary, the Bank only
consolidates the firancial result of the subsidiary from the baginning of the period up to the date of
the divestmeant without cansolkdating the net assais of the subsidiary, Furthermare, the Bank makes
adjustments of indirect impact of the divestment transactions on the consolidated cash flow

etatermant

The financial statements of subsidlanes am prepanzd for the same reporiing penod as the parent
company, using consistent aocounting polcias,

All intra-campany batances, income and expenses and unrealized gains or losses result from intra-
company transactions are eliminated in full.

mMon-controlling interests represent the portion of the profit or loss and net assels not held by the
Bank and are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and within aguity in the
consolidated statament of financial position.

Basis of assumptions and uses of estimates

The presentation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Board of Management fo
make estimates and assumptians that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilites, and the
disciosura of contingent liabilities. These estimates and assumptions aiso affect the reported
amounts of income, expenses, and provisions. These estimales are based on assumptions about
several factors with varying degrees of subjectivity and uncartainty. Therafore, actual results may
differ, leading o adjustments to the related ifems in he fulure,

Accounting policles for itams under the Restruciuring Plan for the perfod 2023-2025 and
the arientation towards 2030

Impiementing the “Scheme for Restructuring the System of Credit Institutions in Association with
Handling Bad Debts for the 2021-2025 Panod® issued under Decision No, 682/08-TTg dated 08
June 2022 by the Prime Mintster, bazed on the approval conteniz and opimons of the Stale Bank
of Vietnam under Official Letter B2NHNN-TTGSMNH dated 07 February 2024 ("Official Lettar 62",
the Bank has completed the construction and approval of the Restructuring Plan for the period
2023-2025 and orientation towards 2030 ("Restructuring Plan") according to Resclubion No
1428/2024/NO-HBOQT dated 28 June 2024, in sccordance with the faw, and reparted to the Slale
Bank af Vietram,

In tha Restructuring Plan for the period 2023-2025 and orientation towards 2030, the Bank has
comprehansively presented the current status of the Bank’s operations in various aspects; intemal
control system, information technology infrastructure, asset quality, financial status, dentification
of problematic debts requiring appropriate handling mechanisms, based on this, determining
compreahensive and overall objectives and solutions, inciuding (1) financial soluticns: increasing
charter capital, handling and recovering bad debts and outstanding assets; (2) solutions for
gdditional risk provisioning and revaersing accrued interest; and (3) solutions for developing safe
business operations, aiming fo thoroughly address existing |ssues and enhance the Bank's
pperationsl efficiency, ensuring the Bank's healthy, safe, and sustainable development

10
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MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

BOSa/TCTO-HM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the pericd from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

4,

4.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted by the Bank in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statemants are consistent with those used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the parod from 01 January 2024 to 31 March 2024 and the consolidated financial
statemants for the year endad 31 December 2024, except for the following changes:

Law on Credil Insiitulions {Law No. 32/2024/0MH15) dated 18 January 2024 and Creular Mo
21/2024/TT-NHNN daled 28 June 2024 ("Circular 27°)

According to the Law on Credit Institutions and Circular 21, effactive from 01 July 2024, |etters of
credit iz a form of credit extension through issuance, confirmation, negotiation of payment or
relmbursameant of L/C fo facilitate the purchase and sale of goods and sarvices. Transitional
provisions of the Law on Credd Institutions and Circular 21 state that: "Cther contracts,
agreements, commitments, and transactions related to letter of credit operations signed before the
effective date of Circular 21, can continue o be implemented, monitored until their validity expiras
and all related okbligations are fulfiled. Any amendments, supplements, or extensions to these
agreemants must comply with Circular 21's regulations’. The Bank has made accounting
recagnition in accordance with these transitional provisions,

Circular No. 082024/ TT-NHNN dated 18 June 2024 ("Circular 067 amends and supplemenis a
mumber af provisions of Clrewiar Mo, 022023 TT-NHNN dated 23 April 2023 ("Circuiar 027

On 18 June 2024, the State Bank of Vietnam issued Circular 06 amending and supplementing a
numbar of provisions of Circutar 02 regarding the restructuring of repayment penods and
maintenance of debt groups by credit institutions and foreign bank branches to support custamears
facing difficulties. Circular 06 is effectiva from 18 June 2024. The changes related to accounting
palicies in Circular 06 are as follows:

. Extension of tha parod for incurring principalfor interast paymen! obligations of restructured debts
until 31 Decamber 2024,

- Extension of the peried for credit institutions to restructure repayment periods for customers until
Decamber 2024

Circular No, 312024 TT-NHNN dated 30 June 2024 (“Circular 317) replaces Circular No.
112029/ TT-NHNN dated 30 July 2021 ("Circwlar 117

O 30 June 2024, the State Bank of Vietnam issued Circular 31 prescribing classification of assais
in operations of commearcial banks, non-bank credit institutions and foreign bank branches. This
Circular takes effect from 01 July 2024, raplacing Circular 11. The significant changes of Circular
31 refated to the estimation of provisions for credit lossas are as follows:

- Amending the debt classification principles for debts arising from factoring activities;

- Bupplementing the debt classification principles for debts arsing from lefler of credit
transactions, outright purchase transactions without recourse of documents presented undar
letter of credit fransactions and some othar transacticns.

Decres 86/2024/ND-CP dated 11 July 2024 ("Decree B6')

On 11 July 2024, the Government |ssued Decree BE providing for amounts and methods of
astablishing risk provisions and use of provisions for management of risks arising from operretions
af credil nstiutions and foreign bank branches and cases in with credit institutions allocate
forgivable interast. This decree takes-effect from 11 July 2024

Vi
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSa/TCTD-HK

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuead)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

4.1.

4.2

4.3,

4.4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continuad)
Cirordar Na, 532024 TT-NHMNN dafed 04 Decembar 2024 ("Circular 53

On 04 December 2024, the State Bank of Vietnam issued Circular 53 regulating the restructuring
of dabt repaymant tarms for customars facing difficulties due to the impact and damage of Typhoon
Mo. 3, floods, landslides after Typhoon Mo. 3. This circular takes effect from 04 December 2024.

Deciston Mo, 15T00B-TTg daled 04 December 2024 ("Qecision 15707

On 04 Decembar 2024, the Pamea Minister issued Decision 1510 regulating the classification of
assets, provision rate, mathods of risk provisions, and the use of provisions fo handie risks for
debts of customers facing difficulties dua to the impact and damage of Typhoon Mo. 3. This
decision takes effect from 04 December 2024,

Foreign currency conversion

All tfransactions of the Bank are accounted for In thair orginal currencies. &1 the end of tha
accounting period, assets and liabilities denominated in fersign currencies are transiated into WND
at the exchange rate on the date of the consclidated financial statement (Aafe 37). Income and
expenzas in Toreign currencies of the Bank are franstated into VND at the exchange rate on the
date of the ransaction.

Exchanga rate differences resulting from the revaluation of assets and labilites in foreign
currancies info WND during the period are recorded and monilored In the ilem " Exchange rate
diferences” in tha "Cwriars” Equity” =ection of the conzolidated financial statement and are fully
transferred to the consolidated income statemant at the end of the accounting perod.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, gold, balances with the SBY, treasury bills and other
short-term valuable papers eligible for rediscount with the SBY, balances with othar financial
institutions and ather Cls that are withoul a termn and mature not exceeading thres (03) months from
the trensaction date and securities with recovery or maturity of three {(03) months or less from date
of purchase.

Balances with and loans fo othar Cls

Deposits and |oans to other credit institufions are disclosed and presented at their principal
balances at the end of the accounting period,

The classification of credit rsk for deposits and leans to other cradit institutions and the
corregponding provisioning is camed out in accordance with Circular 31 and Decree 86,

Accordingly, the Bank makes specific provisions for deposits {excluding demand deposits at cradil
Imstititions, foreign bank branches, deposits at secial policy banks as per the regulations of the
Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam regarding state credit Institutions maintaining deposit
balances at social policy banks) at credit institutions, foreign bank branches in accordance with the
l=w, and deposits (excluding demand deposits at foreign credit institutions) as per the method
stated in Note 4.6

According to Decree 86, the Bank iz not required o make general provisions for the above-
mentioned depositz-and loans,
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSaTCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as al 31 March 2025 and for the period from 07 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

4.5.

4.6,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans o cusfomers

Loans to customers era présented on the consolidated statement of financial position at thair
principal balances, less the provision for loen losses as of the reporting data.

The provision for cradit sk of loans to customers is accounted for @and presented 85 a separate
lire itesn on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term loans ara loans with a tarm of up 1o 31 year from the disbursement date, Medium-term
loans have a term of over 01 year to 05 years, and long-lerm loans have a term of over 05 years
from the disbursement date.

The classification of loans and pravisioning for eredit risk iscarned out in accordance with Circular
31 and Decree 86 as prasented in Note 4.6.

Debt classification and provisions for cradit sk

Thi Bank applies the quantiiative method prescribad in Article 10 of Circular 31 in classifying debts
for assets (herainafter refered to as “debis") including:

Lending;
- Financial leasing;
Discounting and rediscounting of negotiable Instrumants and othar valuabla papers,

- Factoring;
- Credit extanslon by Iszuance of credit cands:

- DOn-bahall paymeants under off-balance shest commitments {including payments made on
behalf of customears to fulfill their obiigatons undar guarantes agreements and in letter of credd
(LC) operafions {except for the caseas specified in Point n, Clausa 1, Article 1 of this Circular)
and other on-bahalfl payments undar off-balance sheet commitments);

Purchase and entrusled purchasa of corporate bonds (including bonds issoed by other credit
institutions) which heve not yet baan listed on securities markat or have not yat baan ragistered
for trading on the UFCaM trading system (hereinafter refered to as “unlisted bonds®), excluding
the purchase of unlisted bonds with trusted funds to which the frustee bears the risk;

Entrustmeant for credit extension;

Making deposits (except for demand depasits mada at cradit institutions and foraign bank
branches ("FBEs"), deposiis made st social poficy banks in accordance with regulations of the
Govamar of tha State Bank of Vietnam on state-owned credil institutions’ maintenance of
balance of deposits at social policy banks) at credit institutions and FEBs as prescribed by law,
and making deposits (except for demand deposits) at averseas credit institutions;

- Buying and sefling debts according to regulations of the State Bank of Vietnam (hereinafter
referrad to as "SBV"), exdcapt for bad debt buying and salling transactions conducted between
credit institutons or FBBs and Vietnam Assel Management Company ["YAMC™),

-  Repos of government bonds on securities markst in accordance with regulations of l@w on
issuance, registration, depositing, Hsting and trading of government debt instrumentz on
securities market

- Purchase of cerificates of deposit issued by other credit institutions and FBRs;
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MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank B05a/TCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMNTS {cantinued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for tha period from 01 January 2025 1o 31 March 2025

4.

4.6,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Debt classification and provisions for credit risk (continued)

Issuance of deferred payment L/Cs containing a provision that the beneficiary is entitied to
ragaive sight paymeant or advanced payment before the L/'C due date, and L/C reimbursement
in the form of an agreement with the cusfomer to make paymant using the reimbursing bank’s
funds fram the date on which the reimbursing bank pays the bensaficiary; L/C payment by
negotiation:

Outright purchasa without recoursa of sets of documents presented under LICs, except where
a commercial bank or FEB buys outright a sat of documeants presented undar an LIC which it

izvad.
General provisian
Aecarding to Article 7 of Decree BB, the general provision amount shall account for 0.75% of total
outstanding balance of debis classified into groups 1 to 4, except the following:
- Deposits made at Cls and FBBs in accordance with regulations of law and at overseas Cls
- Loans, forwards of valuable papers betwean Cls and FBBs in Vietnam;

- Purchasas of certificates of deposit or bonds ssued by Cls and FBBs onshora.

- Repos of government bonds on the securities market in acoordence with |lew on ssuance,
ragistration, depasiting, Esting and trading of government debt instruments on securities market;

- (Other debts denved from the operations specified in clause 2 Aricle 3 of this Decree betwesan
Clzand FBE= in Vietnam as prescribed by law,

General provizion Iz monthly calcutated and recognized in the Bank’s consofidated income
statemeant.

Spaciic provision

Specific provision s made on monthly basis and recaorded 0 the Bank's consolidated income
giafemeant.

The specific provision as at 31 March 2025 5 made basaed on the outstanding principal baltance
lass discouniad collatarals valua, then mullipllad by provision ratas whish are delarmined based
on the debt classification as st 31 March 2025, The basis for determination of the value and
discounied value for each type of collateral is specified in Decres 86

The dabt classification and specific provision ratas for each group are prasentad as fallows:

F;r_n_:iig_ian

Group Description i

@) Any unmatured debt both principal and interest of which are
rated likely to be fully recoverad by duea date,

{b) Any dabt which is less than 10 days past dus and whose o
overdus principal and interest are rated fikely to be fully
recoveaned while its remaining principal and interest are rated
likely to be fully recoverad by due date;

(a) Debis arg overdua for a parod of betwaen 10 days and 90 days;
Special o "
meanbon | (b Dabis thatl the repaymeant terms are restrctured for the firs

1| Current

time

i % dF
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the pariod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinuad)

4.6.  Debt classification and provisions for credit risk {continued)

BOSalTCTO-HN

Group

 Description

Provision

Sub-
standard

{a) Debts are overdue for & perod of between 91 days and 180
days; ar

{b} Debts that the repayment tarms are exdandad for the first lime;
o

{c) Debts that |nterests are exempted or reduced because
customers do not have sufficient capability to repay all intarasts
under cradit contracis, or

{d) Debizs under one of the follovdng cases which have nof been
recovered in less than 30 days from the date of the recovery
dacizion:

- A debt violating provisions of clauses 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 Arficla 134
of the Law on Credit Institutions;
& debl violating provigons of dausas 1, 2, 3,4 Article 135 of
the Law on Credit [nstiiutions;

- A debt violating provisions of dausas 1, 2, §, & Article 136 of
the Law on Credit Institutions;

(e} Dabltz are ragquired 1o be recovered according to regulatory
inspection conclusions,

(f) Debts are required to be recovered according to the Banks'
decigion on early recovery due lo customers' breach of
agreements but have not vet been recoverad in 30 days from the
Issuance date of the decision; or

(g} At the request of the SBY bazed on the inspection; supenssion
concluzions and relevant credit iInformation.

20%

4 | Doubtll

{a) Debts are overdue for a period of beiween 181 days and 360

days, or
{b) Dabts thal the repayment terms are restructured for the first time

but still overdue for a perod of 80 days under that restructurad |

repayment term; or

{c} Debts that the repayment terms are restructured for the second

fime; ar

(ch Debis are specified in Point (d) of Loan group 3 and overdue for
a period of belween 30 days and 80 days afier decizsions of
recavery have been issued; or

{g) Debts are required fo be recoverad sccording to regulatory
inspection condusions but still overdue for a period up to G0
days since the recovery date as required by regulatory
inspeciion conciusions.

(f) Debts are required to be recovered sccording to the Banks'
dacizion on early recovery due to customers’ breach of
agreements but have not yet beaen recavered for a period of
between 30 days and 60 days from the issuance date of the
decizskon; or

(@) At the request of the SBY based on the inspection, supenvision
conclusions and relavant credit information.

0%
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National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank 805aTCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
gz at 31 March 2025 and for the patod from 01 January 2025 10 31 March 2025

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Debt classification and provisions for credit risk (continuad)

e e e F e
Group Description s
| (a) Dabts ara overdue for a period of rm:-lre than 360 days; or

(k) Debts that the repayment terms are restructured for the first
time but still overdue for a period of 81 days or mora unoer that
first resiruciured rapaymeant tenm; or

(e} Dabts that the repayment terms are restructured for the second
time but still overdus under that second restructured repayment
term; ar

{d) Debts that the repayment terms are restructured for the third
time or mona, regardless of being overdue or nof; or

{e) Debts are specified in Point {d) of Loan group 3 and overdue
for a period of more than 60 days after decisions on recovery
lave been issued; or

5| Leoss | (f} Debis are required to be recovered under reguiatory inspection | 100%
conclusions but still overdue for a perod of more than 60 days
since the recovery date as required by regulatory inspection
conclusions; or

iq) Dabts are required to be recovered according o the Banks'
decision on early macovery due to customers’ breach of
agreemants but have not yet been recovered for a period of
more than B0 days from the iszuance date of the decision; or

ih) Debts of credit institutions under spacial control @s announced
by the SBY, or debis of foreign bank branches which capital
and assets are suspended.

(i} Atthe reguest of the SBY based on the inspection, supenvision
| conclusions and relavant credit information

Far paymeants on behalf arising from off-balance sheet commitments, the Bank classifies loans
basad on overdue days starting from the date when the Bank committed obligation:

F Group 3 = Sub-standands: overdue for less than 30 days;
» Group 4 — Doubtful; overdue for batween 30 days and 80 days;

* Group 5 — Loss: overdue for 80 days or more.

When a customer has mora than one debt with the Bank and any of the outstanding debts iz
classified into & higher risk group, the Bank is required to classify the entire remaining debis of

=uch customer into the corresponding higher risk group.

If a customer's debts with the Bank are classified into a lower risk group than the loan group
provided by the Mational Credit Information Center of Vietnam (*CICY), tha Bank s requlred to
adjust the classification of such customaer into the corresponding higher risk group according to

classification result from CIC,

When the Bank parlicipates in a syndicated loan as & participant, the Bank classifies loans
{including syndicated |oans) of the customer into the higher of the nsk group assassad by the
leading bank and by the Bank.

1a
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National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSa/TCTO-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSCQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS (cantinued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the pariod from 01 Janoary 2025 to 31 March 2025

4,
4.6,

4.7,

4.0 7,

4.7.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {confinued)
Dabi classification and pravisions for credit sk (continued)

From 13 March 2020 to 30 June 2022, the Bank applied the palicy of loan restrectuning, interest
andfor fees exemnption or reduction and loan classification retention for loans that meet conditions
according to Circular No. 01/2020TT-NHNMN dated 13 March 2020 (*Circutar 017), Circular Mo.
03Z021/TT-NHNN ("Cércular 03") dated 02 Aprl 2021 and Circular No, 14/2021/TT-NHNN
("Circular 14") dated 07 September 2021 issued by the State Bank of Vietnam providing regulations
an lean resfructuring, interest and/cr fees exemplion or reduction and loan classification ratantion

to assist customers affected by the COVID-19 pandemic,

Fram 24 April 2023, the Bank applad the policy of restructuring and loan classification retantan 1o
suppart customens facing difficulties in production and business activities and customers facing
difficulties in repaying loans for living and consumpfion needs, This policy aligna with the conditions
sal forth in Circular Mo, 02/2023/TT-NHMN ("Circular 02") dated 23 April 2023, and Circular Mo.
DE2024/TT-MNHMNN {"Circular 05™) dated 18 June 2024, amending and supplementing a numbser of
arficles of Circutar ko, 02 wsaed by the State Bank of Vietnam regulating cradit instilutions 1o
support customers facing difficulties in production and business activiies and customers facing
and foreign bank branches to restructure the debi repayment penod and maintain the debt group
difficulties in repaying leans for living and consumption needs.

From 04 December 2024, the Bank has appled palices to restruclure debt repayment terms and
maintain debt classification to support customears meeting the requirements of Circular 53 and
Decigion 1570, which regulate the restruciuring of debt repsyment terms and maintaining debt
clazsification o support customers facing difficuliies due to the impact and damage of Typhoon
Mo, 3.

Investment securities

Cassification

Imvestment securittes include avallable-for-sale Investment secunties and  held-fo-maturity
Investment securities. The Bank initlally recognizes investment securifies at cost and classifies
investment securities into proper categories at purchase date, According to Official Letter Mo,
260TNHNMN-TCKT dated 14 April 2009 by the SBY, for investment securiies, the Bank is aBowead
1o reclassify maximum of ore time after indtial recognition,

Held-to-malusily investiment sacuniias

Held-to-maturty investmen! securities are debt securifies with ficed maturlies and fived or
determinable payments, where tha Bank has positive intention and ability to hald wntil maturity,

Avalatie-for- sl investment secuniies

Available-for-sale invesimant securifies aré debt sacurities which are held for an indefinite period
and may be sold at any time.

Facogition

The Bank recognizes invastmant securiiles on the data that it acquires substantial sl the risks and
rewards of cwnership of these securifies.
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSa/TCTD-HN

MNOTES TO THE CONSOCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
a5 at 31 March 2025 and for tha parlod from 01 January 2025 o 31 March 2025

4,

a7,
473

£7.4

SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cantinued)
Investment securities (continuad)

Measurament

Debt securities are initially stated at cost, induding transaction costs and other directly atfributable
costs, They are subsequently recognized at amorized cost (affected by premiumidiscount
amortization) less provision for credit risk and diminution. Premium and discounts arising fram
purchases of debt sacurities are amaortized to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basiz from the acquisition date (o the maturity date.

Fost-acguisition interest income of available-for-sale debt securities and held-to-maturity debt
securities is recognized in the consolidated income statement on an accrual basis. The aceruad
intarest before the Bank purchazas dabl sacuritias will be deducied from the value of the accrued

interest account when received

Provision for diminution in value of secunties is made when the carmying value is higher than the
market valua in compliance with Gircular Mo, 482019 TT-BTC dated 08 August 2019 {"Circular
48"}, as amended and supplemanted by Ciroular No, 2420220 T-BTC dated 0F Apd] 2022
("Circular 247) Issued by the Ministry of Finance. Provision for diminution s recognized in the “Mef
gaindloss) from investment securlies” tem of the consolidated incoma statemant.

For Government bonds, Governmeant-guaranteed bonds and municipal bonds, the Bank doas nol
maka provisions for these investrments.

For corporate bonds that are listed, registered for transactions, the market price of bonds is the
latest transacton prica at the Stock Exchangea within 10 days ta tha reporiing date. If thers is na
transaction within 10 daye o the reparting date, no provision is caloulated for thess investmenis

The Bank is reguired to meke provision for credit risk for corporate bonds (including bonds issued
by other Cls) which have not yet been listed on stock exchanges or have not yet been registerad
for trading on tha UPCob trading system under Circular 31 and Decres 85 as described in Nate

4.6

Other unlisted debt sacurties {excluding unlisted corporale bonds mentioned above) are stated at
cost less provision for diminution in value delermined by market value of securifies. If there s no
market value or market value cannot be determined reliably, these securities will be recognized al
their carrying amount,

Pravision for investmant sacurities will be reversed when a subsaquent increase in the recoverabla
amount af the investment sacurities is due to an objective event occurting after the provison is
recagnized. Frovision is reversed only up (o the camying amount of thesa secunties before
prowvision has been made.

De-racagnition
Investment securities are derecognized whan the conlracteal nghts 1o the cash flows from theass

sacurities expired or when the substantial isks and rewards of ownership of these securities have
been transfarred.
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National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTO-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the pariad from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

4,

4.8.

4.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other long-term invesiments

Hher long-term investmenis represent investments in other entities in which the Bank holds less
than or equal to 11% of vating rights. Thasa investiments are initially recorded at cost at the
Investment date and recognized subsequently at cost less pravision for diminution In the value of
other long-term investments (if amy).

In casas where the sharas of the invested entities are registered for frading on the Unlisted Public
Company Markst (UPCoM), provisions for impairment are made when the actual marked price,
determined as the average reference price over the 30 conseculive frading days before the
financial statement date as announced by the Stock Exchange, is lower than the cost of the
invesiment. If tha shares of the joint-stock company registerad for trading on the UPCaM have no
transactions within 30 days bafors the financial statemeant date, the Bank determines the provision
level for each invastiment according to the regulations similar to the cases of other investmeants

balow.

Accordingly, at the time of preparing the consolidated financial statements andfor at the end of the
Bank's fiscal year, If the investments in economic organizations have decreasead in value comparsd
to the invesiment valua, the Bank makes provisions for thesa investments according to Clause 2,
Articie § of Circular 48,

Eased on the consolidated financial statements of the invested economic organization praparaed at
the zame time as the Bank's consolidated financal statements, provisions for each unlisted
imvestment or registared an the UPCobM ara calculsted according to the following formula:

Actual rate of chartar Faries' actusal
Leval of capital (%) of tha investment capital at the ﬂii"g} Equlul"l |
provision enterprise at an business organization ;:&F:l;. za!jnfe:t‘ ?ﬁs
for usiness organization receving capital mrg 1::'[ ki IhE
invastment at the time of making contribution at the time W £ A AR
the provision of making the provision i

In the event that the economic organizalion receiving the capital contribution doas not prepare a
financial report simultaneousty with the Bank's provisioning, the Bank will base its provisions upon
tha mast recent finanaal repert of that organization,

Fixed assefs
Fiwed assets are prasented at cost less accumulated depreciation or amorfizafion.

The initial cost of fixed assets includes the purchasa prica of the assel, including mport duties,
non-refundable inpul taxes, and directly related costs to bring the asset to its intended use
condition and |location

Costs of acquisition, upgrades, and renawals of ficad assets are added to the cost of the fixed
assels, maintenance and rapair costs are expensad as incurrad.

When fized assets are sold or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depredation are written off,
and any resulling gains or losses from the disposal are recognized in the consalidated income
statement.
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National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSa/TCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and fer tha pariod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

4

4.8

4.70.

4.11.

411.1

4. 11,4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
Fixed assefs {continued)

Depraciation and amortization of tangible and Intangible fixed assels are calculated using the
straight-line. method over the estimated useful life of the fixed assets, in accondence with the
guidance in Circular No. 45/2024TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013, as amended and supplamanted by
Circular Mo, 1472018/ TT-BTC dated 13 October 2016 and Circular No, 28/2017/TT-BTC dated 12
Apnl 2017 issued by the Ministry of Finance as follows:

Buildings and structures 5-40 years
Machinery and equipment 3-5 years
Transportafion and facilifies B years
Cther tangible fived assats 5 years
Computer sofiware 3 years
Cther intangible fixed ssssta Lipto 20 years

Land use rights with a definife term &re amaortized over the period specified on the land w=e rights
cartificata. Land use rights with an indafinite tarm are recorded at their ariginal cost and gre not

subject to amortizatian,

Operafing lease paymenits

Operating lease paymenis are recognized in the "Operating sxpenses” lem on tha conzolldaled
Income statement wsing the stradght_—llna method over the lease term. Lease commissions received
are recognized in the consolidated income statemant as an integral part of the total lease cost.
Recelvables

Recaivables clagsified as credit risk bearing assels

Feceivables classified as credit risk assets are recognized at cost,

Receivables classified as credit risk asssls are subject to debt classification and provisioning for

credil risk by the Bank In accordance with lagal regulations on provisioning and use of provisions
o handle rgks, as presanted in Mols 46

Ciher receivalies
Other recelvables not classified as credit nsk assets are recognized at cost

Other receivables are considered for provisioning for credit sk based on the overdus age of the
dabt or the anticipated |oss that may oceur in cases whara the debl is nof yet dus but the economic
arganization is bankrupt or undergoing dissclution procedures; the debtor is missing, absconding,
being prosecuted, tried, or serving a sentence by legal authorilies, or has died. Provision expansas
are recognized in the "Operating expenses” item on the consolidaled incoms siatamant,

For cvardue recaivables, the provisioning leveis are stipulated in Circwlar 48 and Clrcular 24 as
fallows:

Cwverdue status — Priwlsion rate
From six months up o under one yaar 30%%
From ona year up to under lvo years S0%
From two years up to under threa years TO%
From three vears 100%
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MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSaTCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the perod from 01 January 2025 10 31 March 2025

4.
4,12,

4.13.

4.14.

4.15.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Prepald expensos

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the consolidated
statement of financial position and amodized over the penod for which the amount is paid or the
period in which aconomic benefil is generated in relation (o theze expansas,

Interest income and expenses

Interest income is recognized in the consolidated income statement on an accrual basis for debts
classified as standard debis nol requining speciic nNsk provisioning,

Far other debis (including restructurad debts maintained as standard debts according to Circular
01, Circular 03, Circular 14, Circular 02, 2nd Circular 53), the interest on these debts is recognized
in the consolldated income statement whan the Bank aclually recaives it.

Interasl expanses ara recognized in the consolidated income statemeant on an-acorual bazis,
Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income, induding fees received from payment senvices, Ireasury Sanicas,
feas from guarantee services, and othar services, is recognized by the Bank in the consolidated
statemant of incoma whan incurred.

Capital and reserve
Charfer capifal

Charier capital is formed from the amount contibuied by shareholders to purchase sharez or
stocks. or supplemented from after-tax profits according to the Resolution of the Genaral Mesting
of Sharehoiders or as stipulated in the Bank's chaner. Charlar capital is recognized basad on the
actual capital confributad in cash or assets calculated al tha par value of the issusd shares af the
tima of establishmant ar additionally raised to expand the Bank's operations.

=hare premium

Share pramium records tha diffarence {increase or decreasa) between the issue price and the par
value of the shares {including reissusd treasury shares), as well a8 costs directly attributable to
Issuance of ordinary shares or sale of treasury shares,

Treasivy share

Treasury share. is the share the Bank issued and purchased back. The paymant for purchasing
share, including directly attiibutable expenses, will be deductad into the owners' aquity till the
treasury share has bean cancaliad or reissued, The recaived amaount from reissue or sale of the
treasury share, deducting expensas related to the reissue or sale will ba included in the ocwners'
eguity

Dther owners' capital

Other owners’ capital is the business resource which is added from the operating result or offered,
sponsored o under assets revaluation
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National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank B05aTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinuad)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the perod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

4,15,

4,16.

4.17.

4.18.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Capital and reserve (continued)
Funds &md reserves

The Bank allocates the foliwing reserve funds before distribufing profits in accordance with the
Law on Credit Institutions Mo, 47/201002H12 dated 18 June 2010, Decree No. BR2017/ND-CP
dated 07 August 2017 on the financial regime for credit institutions, foreign bank branches, and
financial supervision, evaluation of the efficiency of state capital Investmant in credit institutions
whaolly owned by the state, and credit institutiona with state capital, and according to the Bank's
Charter.

Retained sarmings

Principles for Recognizing Undistributed Profits: Thesa are recognized as the profit (or loss) from
the business aperations of the Bank after deducting (-) the corparate income tax expenses for the
current period and adjustmenis due to retrospactive application of changes in accounting policies
and refrospective adjustments of material emors fron previous years

The distribution of profitz and the estabishment of funds are based on the Bank's charter and the
Board of Directars' proposal approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,

Deposits and borrowings from other Cls, deposits from customers and valuable papers
izswed

Deposits and borrowings from other Cls, deposita from customers and Issuance of valuable papers
are preasented al thatr principal balances at the end of the accaunting parad.

At initial recagnition, pramiums’ discount anising from the issuance of valuable papers are recorded
as an increased decrease n the principal balanca of the bonds. The Bank aflocates these costs to
“rferes! and simifar axpansss” using the stralght-line method In saccardance with the term of the

papers.
Payables and accrued expenses

Payables and accrued expenses are recognized for amounts 1o be paid in the future for goods and
senvices receivad, whether or not the Bank has received an invoice from the suppliers,

Principles and methods for recognizing cormporate income tax and corporate income fax
CXPENses

Incame tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax when profit or loss
of one accounting pencd is determinead.

Current ek

Current 1ax ia the tax payable {or recoverable) an the (axable income and tax rate enacted in
current year in accondance with the law on corporate income fax,

Dafarred Lax

Deferred tax s provided for temporary differances betwaen tha camying amounis of azsals and
liahilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purpeses, Dafarmad
income tax liablity is provided for all temporary differences; defermed incoma tax asset is anly
pravided whan thems iz enough taxabbe profit in the future for deducting the temporary differences,

il
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSa/TCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: {(continued)
as gt 31 March 2025 and for the perod from 01 January 2025 10 31 March 2025

4,

4.78.

4,14,

4,20,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMNTING POLICIES {continuad)

FPrinciples and methods for recognizing corporate income lax and corporate income fax
expenses (continuad)

The camyng amount of deferrad tax assels

The carrying amount of defarred tax assets must be reassessed st each reporting date and
raduced to the axtent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow the benefit of par or all of that deferred tax assets o be ulilized. The unrecognized deferrad
tax assats will be reassessed al each reporting date and recognized to the extent that if has
bacome probable fulure axable profit will sllow the deferred tax &sset to be utilized.

The deferred tax s charged or cradited in the income statement except when it relates to items
recognized directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceabla rght to sat off
current tax assets against curmant tax liabikties and when thay ralate ta income texes ievied by the
sama taxabla entity and the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current
{2 a=sets and lishillies on a net basis

The tax amounis pavable to the Stale budget will be finallzed with the tax office, Differences
betwean the tax amounts payabla spacified in the book and the tax amounts under finslization will
be adjusted when the lax finallzation has baan lssuad by the tax office.

Chfzal

Financial assets and liabiities can only be offset and presented at thelr net valua in the
consolideted statement of financial position when the Bank has a legally enforcaable right to off set
them and infends {o settle both simultaneocusly or reallze the assats and =zattle the labilifies
concurrently,

Derfvatives

The Bank angages in forelgn exchange forward contracts, swap contracts, and futures contracts
to anable oustomars to manage, adjust, or mitigate fareign exchange risk or other market risks, as
well as to senre the Bank's business objectives.

Forgfgn cirmancy fanvard confracts

Forelgn currency forward contracts are agreements lo buy or sell a speeific currency at &
pradetermined exchange rate on a future date. settled in cash These contracts are inifially
recorded al their nominal value on the ransaction date and subsequently revalued perdadically
The differance arising from this revaluation is recorded in the "Foreign Exchange Differences” ltam
within "Owriers” Equity” and transferred fo the conzolidated Income slatement at the end of the
accounting period.

Curmeicy Swap Contracts

Currency swap contracts are commitments that include a commitment to buy and & commitment
o sell fhe same amount of one currency for anothar atl exchange raftes determined st the fime of
the transaction, with differant settlemant dates for the two commitments. The premium or discount
rasulting from the difference betwesn the spot exchange rate on the effective date of the contract
and the forward rate will b2 recognized immediataly on the sffactive date of the contract 23 an
assel if positive or a liability il negative on the consolidated financial statemants, This difference
will be amortized on a straight-line basts info the consolidated income statement over the term of
the confract.

23
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

BOSa/TCTD-HM

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as al 31 March 2025 and for the perod from 01 January 2025 16 31 Manch 2025

4,20,

4.21.

4.2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
Derivatives [conlinuad)
interest FRate Swap Contracts

The notional amounts of Interest ralea swap confracts are not recognized on the consolidated
financial statements, The interest rate swap differentisl is recognized in the consolidated income
slatement on an accrual basis.

Employee benefits
Fosf-amployment banafis

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employess of the Bank by the Social Insurance
Agency which balangs to the Mimstry of Labor, Invalids and Social Affalrs. The Bank is required 1o
canfribute o these post-employment benafis by paying 2ocial insurance pramilum o the Socal
Insurance Agency at the rate of 17 5% of employees' basic salary plus other allowances. Tha Bank

has no further obligation
Vaoluntary resignation

The Bank has the obligation, under Article 48 of the Vietnam Labor Code No, 45/12018/QH14
effective from 01 January 2021, to pay allowsnce arising from voluntary resionation of employees,
equal to a half of monthly salary for each year of employment up 0 31 December 2008 plus salary
allowancas {if any), The average monthly salary used in this calculation iz the average monthly
satary of the latest six-month period up 1o the resigration date. Accordingly, the working Hme-al
the Bank io calculate the sevarance payment is the total actual working time at the Bank minus the
time emplovess participating in the unemployment insurance in accordance with the faw on
unamploymant insurance and the working tme for which severanca alowances have baan paid
by tha amployer.

Uramploymant alfowancg

Acoording to Article 57 of Law of Employment Mo, 382013/QH13 effective from 01 January 2015
and Decres No. 2682015/NO-CP dated 12 March 2015 of the Government on guidelinas for the
Law on Employmant in term of unamployment insurance, the Bank is reguired to confribute to the
unamployment insurance at tha rate of 1% of salary and wage fund of unemployment insurance
joiners and deduot 1% of monthly salary and wage of each employee to contribute fo the
unemploymeant insurance.

Segment Reporiing

A segment is @ separately identifiable component of @ Bank that engages in businass activities and
risks that are distinguishable from those of the other sagments. The Bank's primary segment is
reported on & geographic bass. The Bank's secondary segment is reported on a business line
basis. Currently, the Bank primarily operates In the banking business. which (nvolvas the ragular
conduct of the following aclivities: accepting deposits, granting credit, providing payment services,
and other banking activities. Accordingly, the Executive Board is of the opinlen that the Bank has
only one business segment, banking operations, and that the Bank's risks and returns are reflected
ini this single businass line. Therelore, the Bank doas nol naad fo presant detalled segmeant reports

by business line

=
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank B05a/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the pariod from 01 January 2025 1o 31 March 2025

4.

4.23,

4.24.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)

ftems with zero balances

itams that are not presented in these financial statements pursuant to Decision Mo, 168/2007/Q0-
MHMN dated 18 Aprd 2007, and Clroular Mo, 4972014 TT-NHMM dated 31 December 2014, on the
financial reporting regime for credit institutions issued by the State Bank of Vietnam on 31
Cecember 2024 are items with zero balances.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of & business
combination is measured as the fair value of assets given, equity instrumeants issuad apd liabilities
incurred or assurmed at the date of exchange plus any cosis directly atiributable to the business
combination. [dentifiabla assets and liabilities and contingent liabilites assumed in & busineas
combinetion are maasurad infially at fair values at the date of business combination.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
cost the buslness combination over tha Group's interest in the net fair value of the acguirer's
idantifiable assets, liabilitres and conlingant liabilitias, If the cost of a business combinglion iz less
than the fair value of the nat assels of the subsidiary scguired, the difference is recognized diractly
In the consolidated income statement. After Initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated amortization. Goodwill is amortized over five-year period on a straight-line basis.

H™= = & = V"



MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank B05a/TCTO-HN

MNOTEES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

CASH AND GOLD

31732025 JTAT2Z2024
VND pmithion VND mrailian
ash an hand in WND 284 380 240819
Cash on hand In forelgn currencias 87,994 55,728
382383 206 645

BALANCES WITH THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM
3132025 122024
YN million WD mitlion
Curren accounts and compulsory resenes 3,013,644 3,607,305
- In WND 2,088 409 3,488,130
= In foreign clymencios 20,235 18,175
3,013,644 3,507,306

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam (SBY) include paymeant deposits and mandatory resernve
funds at the SBY,

According tothe SB\V s regulations on mandalory reserves, banks ara allowed to maintain & floating
balance in the mandatory reserve account ("MRA"). The average monthly balance of the
mandatory reserve must nol be lower than the average balance of individuzl and corporate
customer deposils of the previous month multiplisd by the cormesponding mandatory reserve ratio.

As at 31 March, 2025, the mandatory resarve deposits at tha 58Y in VND and forsign currency
deposits at the SBY earned interest rates of 0.50% par annum and 0.00% parannum, respectively
(az at 31 December 2024 : 0.50% per annum-and 0.00% per annum).

The mandatary resarva ratios al the and of the accounting pariod are as folows:

3132025 FTA 22024
% P

Cemand deposils and term deposits in WMND with a
miaturity of less than 12 months 3.00 300
Tarm deposits in VD with a maturity of over 12
menths 1.00 1.00
Foreign currancy deposits with a maturity of less than
12 months 8.00 2.00
Forgign currency deposits with a maturity of over 12
manths 5,00 B6.00
Foraign currency deposits of overseas credit institutions 1.00 1.00

28
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MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

MNOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as gt 31 March 2025 and Tor the periad from 01 January 2025 6 31 March 2025

7.

8.1,

DEPQSITS AND LOANS TO OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Demand depasits

fn ViND

in fareign cumences

Term deposits

Iy WD

Analysis of balances and loans fo other Cls by cradit quality:

Current

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

Laans to loca! econamic antiias and indwviduals

Discountad bills-and valuable papers
Loans financed by entrusted funds
Payments on behalf of customers

Loan portfolio by credit quality

Current

Special mention

Substandard
Doubdful
Logs

BOSa/TCTO-HM

J1532025 1122024
VNG million VIND rm'.'h‘a_rf
13.816.561 8,325,829
13, 465,475 B 701,325

353,086 532 604

4 100,000 5,760,000

A4, TO0 000 5,750 000
17,816,561 15,073,929

FLAR2025 I ARG24
VND rrailion VND mithion

4,100,000 5,750,000

4,100,000 5,750,000

INE2025 22024
N i vmn rrullicg
TE.016106 71,137,541

- 7,358

13,131 13,833
12,128 15,848
78,041,365 71,174,720

32025 22024
VIND mnilifan VN siitechin
66,265817 55,935,874

821,185 1,331,532
208100 280,880
28833 438 642
10.419.830 13,187 712
78,041,365 71,174,720




MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as al 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

B.

8.2

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS {continued)

Loan portfolio by original ferm

Shori-tarm
Madium-term
Long-term

PROVISION FOR LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

Pravision for loans 1o customers consiats of

Genaral provision
Specific proviswon

B05a/TCTD-HN

ANAA2025 J1A 202024
VINDY i YIND il
24 BBB 585 22,385 410
31,136,762 30,409,105
22,018,038 18,380,205
78,041,365 71,174,720

JFT32025 S22 024
LN rriion YND il

BOT 162 434 803
717,835 761,413
1,225,087 1,196,316

Movements in provision for loans to customers during the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March

2025 are as follows:
Genaral provision
VD rnfm‘ﬂﬂ
COpaning balance 434 8903
Provision madef (reversed)
during the perod (Mate 37) T2.259
Liza of provision for loans 1o
customerns — <
Closing balance 507,162

SoeCiic provision Tolal
VN rrtiion VD mrailion
TE1,413 1,186,318

[2.863) BY, 598

140,615) (40,615)

717,835 1,225,097

Movemants in provision for logns to customers during the period from 01 January 2024 10 31

December 2024 are as follows:

Genaral provishn Specific provision Total
VMDD millian VND millicn VIND mulifan
Cpening balance 312,594 765,601 1,078,085
Provision made! (reversed)
during the period (Nole 371) 122,309 99114 221423
Use of provision for loans (o
cugtomers (142573 (142 573)
Increases dua (o recakving
loans from YAMC = - 39,371 39,371
Closing balance 434,903 761,413 1,196,316

28
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
g5 st 31 March 2025 and for tha pariod from 01 January 2025 (o 31 March 2025

10.

11.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities as at pariod end date included:

BOGaMCTO-HM

31/3/2025 2122024
VIND millian VND rmitficn
Available-for-sale securitios 5,101,284 4,550,275
Debt sacurities 5,101,284 4. 550,275
Government bords 1.6881,284 1,900 275
Bonds {ssued by other local Cis 3,220.000 2 560 000
Held “to-maturity securities 16,515,778 14,325,518
Debt securities 18,515,778 14,325,518
Bonds issued by local aconomic eniities 16515778 14,325 518
Provision for Investmeant securities (152,688) (157,489)
Specific provision for Held-to-maturity investment
zaciurties (152 889) (157 485,
21,464,073 18,718,304
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS, LONG-TEREM INVESTMENT 3
32025 314122024
VIND milltorn VND milfion
Diher long-term investmeants — cost 7198600 18,600
Provigion for long-term invesimenis {248, 356] (348 356)
a71,244 a71,244
Cther long-terny investmeants
3132025 311272024
Share Share
Historical cost holding Historical cost hokding
VN mitlion % VND milfion Fa
Salgon-Cluy MNhon Minarals 15C 273,700 318 3.18
Salgon Investmant JSC (551 338,200 11.00 11.00
Mavibank Secunties J5C 17.700 7.0z 7.0z
Salgon - Binh Thuan Elecinicity
Plant Investment and
Davelopmant JSC &0 000 8.00 §.00
719,600

28
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {conlinued)

as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

12.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

BOSa/TCTD-HMN

Movements of tangible fixed assets from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 are as follows:

Uil WMD) million

Buicing
and  Machines, Means of Oifics

structures equipment  transportation  equipment  Dthers Tatal
Cost
Crpening balance 43815 187278 70912 85,021 33 397058
Additions - = 1,888 _ 1868
Disposals (58] (629) {2,1B1) (4,118) - (6.887)
Closing balance 43,756 186,649 68,731 892,771 33 391,840
Accumilated depreciation
Opening balance 16,115 BS.270 358,140 45,934 33 188,482
Charged for the period 350 4775 1,404 3078 . 8,607
Disposals (59) (617) {2,181) (3,507} - (6.364)
Closing balance 16,406 92,428 37,363 45 505 33 194,736
Met book value
Closing balance 27,350 04,221 31,368 47,266 - 200,205

Bk I "% a2 In"W



Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as gt 31 March 2025 and for the parlod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

12.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (conlinued)

BOSaMCTO-HM

Movaments of tangible fixed assels from 01 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Uit WIND maifiicn
Buiiding
and Machines, Means of Office
structures equipment transporiafion  eguipment  Others Tolal
Cost
Opening balance 44017 158,835 f,ar0 81,984 437 363 648
Additions - 32,401 00 37,263 70,354
Disposals {202} (4.958) (7,153) (24,226) (4D4) (36,843)
Closing balance 43,815 187,278 70,912 95,021 33 397,058
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance 14,874 77704 39,568 59,513 280 181,940
Charged for the panod 1430 15,494 5724 7,827 - 30475
Disposals (1849} i4.928) {7,153) {21,406F (247) (33823)
Clasing balance 16,115 88,270 38,140 45,934 33 188482
Met book value
Opening balance 29,143 82,131 37,808 22471 157 171,708
27,700 99,008 32,772 49,087 - 208,367

Closing balance

As at 31 March 2025, the ardginal cost of fully depreciated tangible fixed assets still in use was
VND 75,888 million {31 December 2024: VND 75,573 million),

a
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSarTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 041 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

13

INTANGIBELE FIXED ASSETS

Movements of intangible fixed assets from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 are as follows:

Liril WD mallicn

Land use nght _ Compuler soffware Others Tolal
Cost
Opening balanca B09,010 182,706 57,732 840 448
Additions - 20,041 - 20,041
Dizposals (7T2.862) (230) - (73,002)
Closing balance 536,148 202,517 57,732 796,397
Accumulated amortization
Opeaning balance = 78,201 57,704 135,905
Charged for the period - 3,882 15 3,Bay
Disposals - (230) . (230}
Other movemeants - 81,853 BT, 718 139,672
Closing balance B
Met book value
Opening balance £09.010 104,505 28 713,543
Closing balance 536,148 120,664 13 656,825

3z



National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)

a5 af 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

13.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (continued)

BOSaTCTD-HN

Movements of intangible fixed assets from 01 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 are as follows:
Uit VIND milffan

Cost

Opening balance
Additions

Dispozalz
Closing balance

Accumulated amortization
Opaning balance

Charged for the period
Disposals

Cither movamants

Closing balance

Met book value
Cpaning balance

Closing balance

Land use right  Compuler software Otharg Tolal
538,147 141,253 57,747 735,147
72,863 41,758 - 114, 622

- {306) 113 {221)
609,010 182,706 57,732 849,448
63.645 57,464 121,109

& 14,518 248 15,066

(262) - (262)

B - % (& G

- 78,201 57,704 135,905
536,147 77,608 283 614,038
609,010 104,505 28 713,543

As at 31 March 2025, the onginal cost of fully depreciated intangible fixed assets still In use was
VIND 99 354 milion (31 December 2024: WND 97,820 million).
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM EMTS (conlinuead)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the perlod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

14,

15.

16.

OTHER ASSETS

BOSaTCTD-HM

31352025 32024
WINDy mmilhicn T T T
Construction in prograss G4 347 49 165
Raceivabies 8,280,141 8,143,727
Inferest and fee recaivablas 26,646 499 530
Ciher assets 2,768,185 2617, 783
Provision for other assets (1,679,440) {1,679,440)
10,060,879 9,630,775
AMOUNT DUE TO THE GOVERNMENT AND THE SBY

3132025 122024
VN rriflion WNE mition
Borrowings from the SBYV B55,959 -
Borrowings pledged by valuable papers 855,959 2
B55,959 =

DEPOSITS AND BORROWINGS FROM OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
31/3/2025 ITT22024
VD mithion VD million
Demand deposits 11,040,935 7,536,450
In WND 11.040 865 7,536,383
In faralgn currencies Fi 67
Term deposits 3,700,000 2,500,000
In WND 3. 700,000 2,600,000
Borrowings from other Cla 200,000 -
In WD 200,000 -
14,940,935 10,038,450

e e



National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

17.

18.

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

BOSaTCTD-HN

31432025 Ji 22024

VND milficn YIND millicin

Demand deposits 8,282,019 9,083,078
Demand deposits in VND 7,818,105 8,812,927
Demand deposits in foreign currancies 362,914 270,151
Term deposits 93,842,534 86,781,912
Tarm deposits in VMD 83 B0 550 BE,T16,234
Term deposils in forgign currencies 61,784 65678
Deposits for specific purposes 288 288
Margin deposits 303,276 251,308
102,527,917 96,117,186

DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS! (LIABILITIES)

Total canliact Tafal book value

value [fal the gt the axchange rate at the reporing data}

exchange fale on

the effeciive dale MNel carrying
of five conlract) Asgels Liakillias amowunt
D miition VD million VIND milikon WEY mmittion
As at 31 March 2025

Currencies derivatives 8,400,786 832 - 832
Forwvard transaclions 613,415 45 - 449
Swap ransactions 8. 787.amM 783 - Ta3
Other derivatives e - - . o
9 400,786 g3z - Bag

As at 31 December 2024
Currencies derivatives 10,950,529 - (B6,313) (86.313)
Forward transaclions 41,458 - 153} 153)
Swap transactions 10,808,870 - | BB, 260) (B6,260)
Other derivatives - - - =
10,950,329 - (86.313) {86,313)




Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMNTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 ta 31 March 2025

19. BORROWED AND ENTRUSTED FUND

B05a/TCTO-HN

31532025 3122024
VD miilion WNLY milion

Funds recaived froem other domestic entilies anid
individuals in WND 10,028 11,150
10,028 11,150

Capital received from Loan Agreemant No. VMNXI-5 for the SME Financing Project, signad betweaen
the Government of the Sociafist Republic of Vietnam and the Japan International Cooperation
Agengy (JICA). The disbursement is aligned with the framework agraemant signed between the
State Bank of Vietnam and the Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank on 01 July 2015.

20, VALUABLE PAPERS ISSUED

Valuable papers issuad by currency and orlginal temm are as follows:

3132025 322024
VINEY million VNE million
Fram 1 to 5 years 770,702 TE3,602
Certiflcates of deposit in VND T T02 763,602
Cwver § years 3,989,691 3,541,041
Certificates of deposit in VND 3,980,691 3,541,041
4,760,393 4,304,643

. OTHER LIABILITIES
31,2025 INTE2024
o VND millian VIND millfon
Internal payables 154,502 307,293
External payables 274 699 347 605
Tax payables (Note 22) 20,083 8,215
Accrued interast and fee payables = 1,084,775 1,188,011
1,544,069 1,850,128




National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSaTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

22. OBLIGATIONS TO THE STATE TREASURY

Lt WINE mifhon

Oecwming during the period

22024 Payables Paymant 3132025

Value added lax 2,002 11.618 (4 254) 8,355
Corporate income tax (47} 626 - 579
Cther taxes 7.260 62,328 155 440) 10,148
9,215 74,572 (63,694} 20,083

Current Corporate Income Tax

The current corporate income tax ("CIT") payable |s determined based on the taxable incomie for
the current period. Taxable income differs from the income reported in the consolidated income
statement because taxable income excludes income tems thal are taxable or deductible in
different perods due to differences between the Bank's accounting policies and current lax
regulations, and [t also excludes items that ara non-taxable or non-deductible for tax purposes.
The Bank's current corporate income tax payable is calculated at the tax raies that have been
anacied by the end of the accounting period,

The Bank's tax returns are subject to examination by tax autharities, As the application of lax laws
and regulations can be Interpreted in various ways, the lax amounts presented in the consolidated
financial statements may be subject fo changes according to the final dacision of the tax authoritias,

The current corporate income tax rate of the Bank is 20% (2024 20%).

ar



National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2023

23.

23.1.

OWNERS' EQUITY

Changes in capital and reserves

Changes in capital and reserves of tha Bank for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 are as follows!

As at 01 January 2024

Met profit for the pariod

Capital increasa for the
pericod

Use of reserves for the
pariod

Az at 31 December 2024

Met profit for the period

fs at 31 March 2025

BO5aTCTO-HN

Lindt: VNG million
investmeant and Stupplemeniary

Chearler Share Treasuty  Development Financial charlercapital  Giher Retained
capital premium  shares fund  mserve resenve  funds eamings Total
5,601,555 - (29,644) 1,106 78,288 47,769 29,644  (534,755) 5,004,672
- - - - - - (5,12893B) (5,128,938)
B.178,283 1216} - - - " - = BTN
- - - (50,965 - - _ (50,965)
11,779,848 {216) (29,644) 1,105 28,033 47,769 29644 (5763693) €,092.846
o - - = - - 150,767 150,767
11,779,848 {216) (29,644) 1,106 28,033 47,769 29,644 (5612926) 6,243,613
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National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the perod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

23.

23.2

OWNERS' EQUITY (conlinued)

Share capital

Breakdewn of share capital at the reporling date:

Charter capital
Share pramium
Traasury shares

Mumber of shares at the reporting date:

Registered share capital
Issued share capital

Ordinary shares

Treasury sharas repurchased
rdinary shares

Outstanding share capital
Ordinary shares

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Interasl income from deposits

Inferast income from loan (o customers and credit

granting o other Cis

[Interest income from deb! imdesiment securities

Income from guarantee senvicas
Cither income from credit activities

BOGa TCTO-HN

3T/A2025 3122024
Wﬂ il VN milfian
11,779,848 11,775,848

(218) (Z218)

(29,644) _ (20.844)
11,749,688 11,745,088
IA2025 3122024
1,180,155,587 1,180,155,587
1,477,984, 751 1,177,684, 751
1,177,984 751 1,177,584, 751
3,352,000 3,352,000
3,362 000 3,352 000
1,174,632,751 1,474,632,751
1,174, 632,751 1,174,632, 7581

From 01/01/2025

From 0140142024

fo 31432025 o 31732024
VND rmiflion WND million
44 812 16,797
1,678,934 1,268,556
71,792 B7.952
#1.810 40,873
3.804 9232
1,841,152 1,423,410

— W AW
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the pered from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

25,

INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

Interest expenses for deposits

Interest expensas for borrowings

Interest expenses for valuable papers issued
Expenseas for other credit activities

NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fees and commission incoma

Settement 2nd cash senices
Treasury servicas
Other senvices

Fees and commission expenses
Settlement and cash services
Traasury services

Ciher services

BOSaMCTR-HM

Fram 01042025 Fram /012024
fo 314352025 to 31/3/2024
YND milfion YMND milion
1,245 479 1,142,241

2798 134

28,007 50427

& 5

1,336,291 1,201,802

From O1/A01/2025

From Q1072024

to 3132025 to 32024
WD mition WND miltfon
58,008 26,743
42 311 17.558

435 A58

15,352 8,820
(28,838) {20,604)
(10,888) 9.611)
(1,183) {1,068)
{18,757) {9,837
20 260 8,139

NET GAIN/ LOSS FROM TRADING OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Gain from trading of foreign currencies
Currency spols
Cumency derivatives

Loss from trading of foreign currencies
Currency spots
Currency derivalives

From /0712025

Fram 01/01/2024

fo F1A2025 o 31532024
VD million WD rrantfican
171,746 123,027
165,077 B2, 152
6,669 44,875
{138,268} [98.873)
(122,187} (56,223)
(16,082) 42 650
33477 24.154

e ]
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National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 ta 31 March 2025

28.

29.

NET GAIN/ LOSS FROM TRADING OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Gain from trading of imvastmant securifies
Loss from trading of investment securities

From 01012025

BOSa/TCTO-HM

From O1/012024

o 31/3/2025 to 31/3/2024
VNG milion VD million
18,415 69,230
(563) (682)

17,852 68,548

NET GAIN/ LOSS FROM OTHER OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Othar oparating income
Cither operating expanses

OPERATING EXPENSES

Tax, dutiez and faes
Employee expansas
I wihieh:
- Salaries and alfowances
- Satary based expendiures
- Subsidies
- Cther employee axpenses
Expenses on assels
- Depreciation and amortization of fived assets
Insurance fee expenses for customers’ deposits
Administrative expenses
Iy wehich
- Par diems
- Expenses for trade union aciivifies

Provision made!(reserved) (exciuding on and off-
balance sheet cradil loss provision; provision for
impairment in the value of securiies)

41

From 01012025

Fronm QT3 12024

fo 31/3/2025 to 31/3/2024

VD miflion VIND million

BY 585 5,220

I (12,868)
12,753 (7,637)

From 01/01/2025

Fram Q1012024

fo 31432025 fo 3132024
VD mn’-']'r'ﬂ WD million
8,418 7,068

222 498 203, Dd4E
205 348 TG, 545
9,877 8,477

a6 &1

7,605 7,949

59 5491 EB.O7S
13,504 10,182
33,743 27 .588

48 G54 49,010
1,812 1,278

- 18

381,914 344,797

_ =& % oEnak
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National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
as st 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

3.

32,

33

PROVISION EXPENSES FOR CREDIT LOSSES

Specific provision made(resarved) for loans to
customers {Aole &)

Ganaral provision madef{reseved) for loans o
customers {Note )

Provision made/(reserved) for investment securities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and gold
Batances with the SEW

Balances with other Cis with original terms of 3
manths or less

EMPLOYEES' BENEFITS

|. Average total number of employees during the yaar
(person}

Il. Employess’ income
. Average monthly incoma/ employes

42

From ADT2025

BOSaTCTO-HN

From 01/01/2024

fo 31/302025 o F1AA2024
VIND millian VNﬂnrdI_lnq
{2,B63) 8,485

T2 259 1,425
{4.500) :

B4, 896 9914
12025 FTAT2R024
YINDY miflion VD il
382,383 206 645
3,013 644 3,507 305
17,816,561 15,073,829
21,312,588 18,877,873
Fram 01012025 From 01012024
fo 3142025 fo 31532024
VN rmilicn WND maillian
2118 1.926
212,987 186,626
33,85 2230

Ll
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

BOSa/TCTO-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the peried from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

("3

35,

CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS
BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGIONS

Concentration of assets, liabdities and off-balance sheet commitmenis by geographical regions as
al reporting date is as follows:

Total deposita Demvalives Trading and

Tatal foans fo fram Othar credd {nomiral inwvastrigni

etstomerns (%) cushomars commitments  contract valie gecuntias ()

VIND million VMDD million VD o ¥IND milticn VD milfion

Damestic 78,041,365 118,124 811 6,672,928 0400786 21,617,062
78,041,365 118,124,811 6,672,928 9,400,786 21,617,062

Excluding prowvisinns

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This gection provides details on the risks that the Bank may encounter relsted to financial
instruments and describes in detail the policies end methods the Bank uses to control these risks.
The most significant financial risks that the Bank may face related to financial instruments include:

- Credit nsk;

- Market risk;

- Liguidity risk.
Crodit risk

Cradit risk is the nsk that a party involved in a financial instrument or contract, such as & cusiomaer,
falls to fulfil their obligations, resulting in finencial loss. Credii risk arises from lending and
guarantaaing activities in vanous forms.

The Bank also faces other credit risks arising from investments in debt securitess and other risks
in the Bank's trading aclivilias (transaction risk'), including non-equity trading portfolio assels,
derivatives, and setflement balances with counterparties.

The Bank malntzing 8 credit risk management poficy that ensures the lollewing fundamental
principles: establishing an appropriate credit sk management environment, operaling under a
sound credit granting process; maintaining an appropriate cradit administration, measurement. and
manitoring process; and ensuring adequate control over cradit risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the rizsk of adverse flucluations and changes in market risk facters (including interast
rates, exchange rates, sacurities prices, and commodity prices on the market, etc.} that negalively
impact the Bank's income and capital. Market risk arlsas from open positions in interest rates,
currency products, and equity instruments. all of which are affected by general market movemeanis
and specific market changes, as well as changes in the volatility of markel prices such as interast
rate risk, currency rizk, and other price risks.

43
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank EOSa/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

35,
35.2

3521

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Market risk {confinuad)
inferast rate ek

Interest rate risk arises when there |s a difference of term in reprcing of interest rate between
assets and liablites. Al credit actvities, mobilization activities, investment activitles of the Bank
aflze Interest rate risk,

On the basis of the state of “interest rate sensitivity” according to periodic changes in interest rates,
the items which are assels, aquity and ofi-balance sheet assets are classified by terms Into the
table “interest gap” of the Bank

Interest rate repricing terms for items with fixed interest rates are the remaining pericd until maturity
date of assets, as for floating Interest rates sre the remalning period until the nearest repricing
dals.

The foilowings assumptions and condifions are applied when constructing “interest gap” table:

» Cash and goid, capital contribution, leng-term investments, fixed assets, other assals and other
labilities are classifisd as “Mon-sensitive 1o interest rate” itams;

» The interest rate repricing terms for trading securities and investment securities are delarmined
based on the remaining contractual maturity st the date of the consolidated financial statements
if such securities have a fixed interest rate, or based on the interest rate repricing terms if such
sacurifies have a flosting interest rate;

» The intarest rala repricing terms for trading securities and investment securities are detarmined
based on the ramaining contractual maturity at the date of the consolidated financial statemants
if such securilies have a fixed interest rate, or based on the Interest rate repricing terms if such
secyrities have a floating interest rate;

» The interast rate repricing terms for deposits and loans to the 5BV and other Cls; derivative
financial instruments and other financial assets and liabilities; loans to customers, deposits and
barrowings from the Gorvenment and SBY, deposits and borrowings from othar Cls) and
depasits from customers are determinad as follows:

- For itemns with a fixed interest rate throughout the term of the contract; the actual interest
rate repricing term is based on the actual maturity date calculated from the date of the
consolidated financial statements;

- For tems with a floating interest rate: the actusl interasi rate repricing term s based on the
most recent interest rate repricing term calculated from the date of the consolidated financial
stalemeants,

- For demand deposits: the interest rate repricing term will comrespond lo the stability of the
demand deposil portfolic over time, based on the results of analyzing the behavior of this
portfolic ina medarately stressful scenano;

» The Inlerest rate repricing term for the Issuance of securities |s based on the contractual
payment/maturity period of each type of security if the security has a fixed interast rate or based
an the contractual interest rate repricing temns if it is & floating rate.

LR =1



National Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the period from 01 January 2025 to. 31 March 2025

35.
35.2

b

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Market risk (confinued)

Interest rate rigk (continued)

The table below summarizes tha Bank's inlorest rate risk as at 31 March 2025;

Azgeis

Cash and gold

Balances with the SEV

Daposits and kans to ofher Cla (%)
Dervatves and other inanca agssts
Loane to customers (*)

Invesirmnent sacurities (7

Capltal coninibutons, long-temm
irneeatments (%)

Fixed] agsels

Qfher asaets (")

Total asaets

Liakiities

Deposits and borrowings from the SEY
and ethar Cls

Deposits from ousiomears

Bormowead and entrusied funds

Waluable papers issued

Oither liabillbes

Total liabilites

On-halane sheet interest sensitivity
gap

Off-balance sheet commaments affecting
the sensitivity lavel with the Inierest rate
of assets and liabilities (ned)

On and off-balance sheat inlorest
sansiivity gap

(" Excluding provisions

BOSaTCTO-HM

Linits WND mifion

Mon-teeresf Lpra? Frowm 1-3 From 3-8 From 6-12 Erovm -5 Quars
Ouardue g moalh  menthis I manths years Vears Toral
- JE2.383 - - £ = 382,363
= 3,012 644 - - “ 5 4003644
- 17,616,561 200,500 - - = - 17,916,561
= 10,742 (3,120] TE2 (7,582 = : 832
5,030,758 15,284 368 a7, 185,287 5778268 2117848 8227730 A8 204 78,041,385
31,554 - a0, 655 1,060,000  2,733.048 14 4582598 32436506 21,617,062
- - = - - - - T19.800 718,600
- 857,030 - - - - = - 857,030
- 7,121,898 181,741 103,945 84,677 2037 0BG 2,070 547 180,225 11,740,318
B.062,312 8,361,311 36,087,047 37 .6BT.T7T 6,890,038 6,880,202 25,756,584 4,582,625 134,288,796
- 15,586,884 - - 200,000 - 5 15,796,894
19,304.059 13208720 22382316 10784415 38870407 - fo2.527 817
- 8,457 A28 - 143 . 10,028
= * - - - 470,872 2280195 1,999,326 4 Ta0, 353
- 445,294 138221 204,546 192774 143308 378,208 33,831 1,544 069
- 449 704 35037174 12420,723 22,575518 11,583,685 39,539,950 2032857 124,635,301
8,062,312 7.912,017 1.049873 24,267,054 (15684580} (4,703,483) (13,783,366) 2,529,668 8,649,495
- 42,580,310 3 = * 42 580,310
8,062 312 50,502,327 1049873 24,267,054 (15,684,580) (4,703,483} (13,783,366) 2620668 52 230805
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5aTCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the perod from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

35.

35,2

S22

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuad)
Market risk {continued)
CiNrency Tisk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments fluctuates due to exchange rale
mowvaments. The Bank was established and operates in Vietnam with the Vietnamese Dong a5 iz
functional eurrency, The Bank's primary transaction currenay is also the Vistnamesa Dang. The
Bank's loans and advances to customers are mainly in Vietnamese Dong and US Dollars.
However, some of the Bank's other assats are in foreign cumencies other ihan Vietnamess Dong
and US Dollars. The Bank has established position limits for each currancy. Currency positions are
monitared dally, and hedging sirategies are used by the Bank fo ensure that currency positions are
maintained within the established limits.

Exchange rales of significant foreign currencies against VMD as at the reporting date are presanted
at Nofe 37,

Presantation of assets and liabilities of the Bank by cumencies converted into WND az at 31 March
2025:

Linit: VND mitfion
Oither
LED ELR  currendies

equivalent equivalont  equivalent Total
Aszsets
Caszh and goid BT 837 4 153 BT 0G4
Balances with tha SBY 24,736 488 - 25,235
Deposits and loans to other Cls () 319,158 7,257 28,871 353,085
Derivatives and other financial assels 97,904 . - 07,904
Loans to customers [¢) 716,380 - . 716,380
Other assets (%) 1,137 - - 1,137
Total assets 1,247,152 7,760 26,824 1,281,736
Liabilities and owners' equity
Deposits and bormowings from tha
SBY and other Clz - 70 - 70
Deposits from customars 417,805 1,522 5,456 424, T83
Cther hiabifitias 2659 a5 . 2,745
Total liabilities and owners’ equity 420,464 1.678 5,456 427,598
FX position on-balance sheat 826,688 6,082 21,368 854,138
FX position off-balance shest (563.258) - 1,609 (561,648
FX position on and off-balance
shoat 263,430 6,082 22,977 292 489

(*  Excludung provisions

fu-il
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MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSaTCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the pencd from 07 Januarny 2025 1o 31 March 2025

5.

35,2
3523

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES FOR FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)
Market risk {continued)
Ligpuridity risk

Liquidity risk |5 tha rsk thal the Bank may be unable to fulfill its payment cbligations related to
financial lisbilities when they become due, particularly in the absence of alternative capital sources
when customers withdraw funds. The consequences could include the Bank's |nability 1o pay
depasitors or meat its lending commitmeants. The Bank manages liguidity nsk through the following

strategias:
¥k Controlling the capital mobilization and loan on daily basis;
* Maintaining investment portfolio securities that are easily convertible to cash;

* Contralling llquidity Indices in the financal status report in compliance with the regulations of
the State Bank of Vigtnam

The maturity of assats and liabillties represants the remaining tarm of 1he assets and liabilitias from
the tima of preparing the financial statements until the final payment as stipulated in the contract
or issuance ferms,

The following assum ptions and conditions are applied in analyzing the maturity of the Bank's asseats
and Rabllities:

*» Balances with the 5BY are classified as demand depasits, including compulsory deposits, The
leval of compulsory deposits depends on the composition and terms of the Bank's depoaits from
customers;

» The maturity term of trading securities and investment securities is based on thair individual
maturity dates. Government sacurities, although dassified as long-term, are highly fiquid and
can ba easily converted to cash. The maturity of equity securities in subsidianes is determined
by the business plan;

¥ The maturity term of deposits and loans (o other Cls, as well as loans to customars, is based
on contractual maturity dates. However, actual maturity dates may vary due to loan axtensions
of prepayments,

» Equity investments are generally considered to have a maturity of more than five (5) years dus
to-thesr indefinite nature;

» The maturity tarms of deposits and borrowings from other Cls, deposits from customers,
borrowings from Government and the SBC and other assets are determined based on thair
specific charactersiics or contractual terms. The maturity term of demand deposits is based on
customer behavior analysis, while the maturtty term of term deposits and loans is based on
coniraciual malurity dates:

* The maturity term of fixed assats |s determined by their remaining useful life;
F Tha maturity term of issued securities is based on their individual maturity dates;
» The maturity term of other liabilities is classified based on their actual individual maturity dates.
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Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
as al 31 March 2025 and for the period from 071 January 2025 10 31 March 2025

35.
J5.2

3g23.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES FOR FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)

Market risk (continued)

Liguidity risk (continued)

Summary of sssets and liabilities of the Bank by term from the perlod ended 37 March 2025 to the maturity date is as follows:

Asseis

Cash and gold

Balances with tha SBY

Ceposits and loans to other Cls %)

Defivatives and other financia assets

Loans 1o customers (%)

Invastment sacunties (*)

Capial contributions, long-term Investrments (%)
Fizad aseats

Ciher aesets (%)

Total assets

Liabiliies

Deposits and borrowings from the SBY and clher
Cls

Ceposis from custamers

Borrowsd and entrusted funds

valuable papecs 155Ued

Oifner liabiiities

Total Habdlithes
Mt liguidity gap

" Exchiding provisons

BOSarTCTD-HM

it YNE nmilen
Orwverdine Linplus Talal
Lip o 3 Over 3 Lo fo 9 Fram 1-3 Fram 3-12 From 1-5
s froris sl maiths frantha ysars ‘Over §years
- s, 3E2 333 352,383
- - 3,013 644 - - 3.0 35 644
- - 17,616,561 300,000 - 17.916, 561
- 3 10,742 {3,120} (8,780 . - 83z
2045 5381 T 34177 1,640,426 5 625 0248 18,840,754 2T AT T2 15872 788 TH, 041,366
. 31.654 . 90,655 3,793,045 14,458 255 3,243 508 21,817,062
. - - - - 718,600 718,600
. = ¥ - . 857,030 857,030
- - 370,455 1446, 158 2,108 731 2070312 7.043 663 11,740,348
296,581 T, 768,731  22,934.211 6,162,622 25,736,724 43,656,330 27,736,588 134,288,796
- - 15,506 894 - 200,060 - - 15,796,854
- 19,388,725 13,112,054 33,146,731 3,870,407 - 102,527,817
= = 9457 428 143 - 10.0:28
. . 470,872 22080195 1,850 326 4, TED 353
- 696.335 367,671 469535 20,508 - 1,564,080
- - 35,691,954 13,478,182 34,287,566 8,181,227 1,888,126 124,638,301
298,681 7,766,731 (12,757,743  (7,316,560) (8,560,842) 4,475,066 25.737.262 6,649,495

Wit = "EN ggm  Fslie
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MNational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOSaTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 March 2025 and for the pericd from 01 January 2025 to 31 March 2025

35. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
35,2 Market risk (continued)

35.2.4. Olher markat risks

Aside from the assets and liabilities detailed previously, the Bank does not hold any other assats
ar fiabilities éxposed to market price risks that could result in a loss exceading 5% of net incoms
ar 5% of the total value of the asset or liability relative to lotal assets

35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As of the date of approval of these conzolidated financial statements, thare have been no
significant events occurring after 31 March 2025, that could have a materal Impast on the Bank's
financial position and require adjustments or disclosures in these consolidated financal statements
for the pariod from 01 January 20235 to 31 March 2025,

3r. EXCHANGE RATES OF APPLICABLE FOREIGN CURRENCIES AGAINST VND

31/3/2025 31/12/2024

VND VAD

AUD 16,088 15,863
CAD 17,878 17,759
CHF 29,084 28,225
EUR 27,708 26,538
GBP 33,173 32 460
IPY 172 163
k] 17 17

sG0 19,068 18,758
THB 758 46
Ls0o 25,530 25416

Hanoi, 25 April 2028

Praparsd by: Rewiewead by

s, Da Quynh Trang his. Buil Thi Khanh Van
Head of General accounting Chigf Accountant
department
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